

PLAINFIELD TOWN COUNCIL

September 12, 2022

7:00 p.m.

Mr. Brandgard: Welcome to Plainfield Town Council meeting for Monday, September 12, 2022.

ROLL CALL TO DETERMINE QUORUM

Mr. Brandgard: Let the record show, all members are present, and we have a quorum for conducting business.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mr. Brandgard: I'd like to ask everyone to rise for the Pledge of Allegiance.

PROCLAMATION

Mr. Brandgard: We do have a Proclamation this evening.

WHEREAS the National Cancer Institute (NCI) and the American Cancer Society (ACS) report cancer as the leading cause of death by disease among U.S. children between 0 and age 19; and

WHEREAS 1 in 285 children in the United States will be diagnosed by their 20th birthday, and;

WHEREAS the average age of diagnosis is 6 years old, compared to 66 years for adults' cancer diagnosis, and;

WHEREAS two-thirds of childhood cancer patients will have chronic health conditions as a result of their treatment toxicity, with one quarter being classified as severe to life-threatening, and;

WHEREAS approximately one half of childhood cancer families rate the associated financial toxicity due to out-of-pocket expenses as considerable to severe, and;

WHEREAS, too many children are affected by this deadly disease and more must be done to raise awareness and find a cure.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: The Plainfield Town Council does acknowledge and recognize the month of September 2022 as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month in Plainfield, Indiana.

Passed and Adopted, by the undersigned Town Council of the Town of Plainfield, Indiana on this 12th day of September, 2022.

CONSENT AGENDA

Mr. Brandgard: Next, we'll go to the consent agenda. Item #15 on the current agenda has been taken off, and item #'s 16, 17 & 18 have been renumbered to 15, 16 & 17.

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Town Council meeting of August 22, 2022.
2. Approval of the Accounts Payable Docket of Expenditures and the Affidavit of Payroll, per the Clerk-Treasurer's Report.
3. Approval of the Human Resources Report dated September 9, 2022.
4. Approval of a proposal from Rozzi & Associates, in the amount of \$90,000 (plus individual assessment costs), for the Town's 2023 Leadership Development programs, per the Human Resources Report. (Funded from General Fund)
5. Approval of the proposal from Civic Plus, in the amount of \$26,430.30, to add SeeClickFix Pro to our existing roster of web solutions, per the Information Technology Director's Report. (Funded from IT Budget)
6. Approval of the supplement to the existing contract with Vector Solutions, in the amount of \$22,955.66, for Fire Territory Staffing Software, pending legal review, per the Information Technology Report. (Funded from IT Budget)
7. Approval of the recommended 2022 Trick or Treat Hours; 5:30pm to 8:30pm on Saturday, October 31, per the Communication and Marketing Report.
8. Approval of the contract renewal with Leech and Russell, in the amount of \$9,480, for HVAC Preventative Maintenance at Police Headquarters per the Municipal Facilities & Fleet Manager's Report. (Funded from General Fund)
9. Approval to allow the Plainfield Optimist Club to charge gate fees during their football tournament at the Al and Jan Barker Sports Complex on October 17th to October 23rd and November 7th to November 13th, per the Parks and Recreation Report.
10. Approval of a proposal from Bowen Engineering, in the amount of \$33,910, to construct a Well House for Well #2, per the Department of Public Works Report. (Funded from Water Availability)
11. Approval of a proposal from Mink Excavating, in the amount of \$28,000, for sewer main repair on Maxwellton Street, per the Department of Public Works Report. (Funded from Wastewater Distribution)
12. Approval of a funding plan for the Sodalis Nature Park Restroom and Utility Extension projects, per the Development Services Report.
13. Approval of Work Order No. 2022-4.0 with Whitaker Engineering, in the amount of \$82,500, for completion of a study for programming expansion of the South Wastewater Treatment Plant, per the Development Services Report. (Funded from Wastewater Availability fund)
14. Approval of Change Order No. 2 with Bowen Engineering for the Mill Street Sewer Separation Project, reducing the contract by \$16,452, per the Development Services Report.
15. Approval of an Interlocal Agreement with the Town of Avon regarding provision of sanitary sewer service to Rise Avon LLC, per the Development Services Report.
16. Approval of a Project Development Agreement with Hickory Hollow LLC (Larry Good) to support the Grey Hawk Subdivision through reimbursement of costs to construct a

Mr. Brandgard: We have a motion and a second to accept the recommendation from the bid review committee to give the bid to Sunny Electric Company in the amount of \$176,500 for the Lightning Protection System in the DPW Facilities. All those in favor signify by aye.

(All ayes)

Mr. Brandgard: Motion carried. Thank you.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Mr. Brandgard: We have two public hearings. Do we have proof of publication?

Mr. Daniel: Yes, we do.

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you. The first is a public hearing for the Town Council Redistricting. We have Brian Bosma if he would come up and present.

Mr. Bosma: Good evening Mr. President, members of the council. I'm Brian Bosma with the law firm of Kroger, Gardis and Regas, 111 Monument Circle, Indianapolis, 46204. Pleasure to be with you again this evening to act on the first reading of the maps that we have been commissioned to assist the council to prepare. As you'll recall, on August 8th the council adopted guidelines, redistricting guidelines, appointing the President of the council as the redistricting coordinator to work with us to prepare a map for the council's consideration. Shortly after that on August 12th we published notice of the availability of public access packets here with your Clerk Treasurer, and also the deadlines for submitting plans or objecting to the guidelines. The deadlines for written comments on the guidelines expired on August 22nd, and the date for submittal of plans was September 8th by noon. We have certification from your Clerk that the only plans submitted was the plan submitted by the council President, and that no objections to the guidelines were submitted. So, you have before you this evening, in the form of Ordinance No. 41-2022 a new Town Council map. To refresh your memory from discussions in August, your old Town Council map had a total deviation in excess of 30%. That was mostly due to underpopulation in District 5 and overpopulation in District 3, due to just population growth and shifts. So, we worked with Councilor Brandgard to come up with a number of different options, which he reviewed and with our concurrence, selected the one that is before you. The total deviation for this plan is 6.28% which is slightly higher than what your guidelines called for unless justified, and the Ordinance justifies that population deviation due to trying to limit the number of precincts divided. You all are in a little bit of a different situation because you run at large. There are very few councils of your size, towns of your size that have a five-member council and districts, but everyone runs at large. So, they relax a little bit at population equality because it's still one person to one vote or really, one person to five votes, and the residency requirements are what the districts are all about. So, I'm going to walk you through just quickly, the splits in the precincts. In District 1 – actually I'm going to go through by precincts instead – okay, first of all, Guilford 4 is split here in order to equalize population right along South Center Street, with the west portion of Guilford 4 being in District 3, and the east portion in District 5. There's a second split of District 4 east and west of Simmons Street, with the portion east of Simmons Street being in Guilford 3. And as you can see, the precinct lines that are a little unusual which made this task a little bit more difficult. Guilford 5 here is split with the north portion being in District 1 and the south portion in District 4, along with the east portion east of Simmons Street – and again, the split, we kept almost all the splits, with the exception of Center and one other, along U.S. 40, which is pretty consistent with your map previously as well. Guilford 11 here again is split at U.S. 40 with the portion north being in District 1 and the portion south being in District 4. In like manner, Guilford 14 – I'm sorry, it's down here. So, we had a population difficulty down here and we ended up splitting 14 with the portion south of Reeves Road being Guilford 16, and that's fairly consistent with the prior maps as well. The little bump right here is the portion of Reeves Road that goes north of the high school. Guilford 17 is split again at U.S. 40 with the north corner of Guilford 17 being in District 1, and the south remainder in District 4. And then Guilford

18 is a very interesting animal; it's s non-continuous precinct that's over here, it's here, and it's here. So, the portion of Precinct 18 that is east of Dan Jones Road – which is just this little square right there – is in District 1 and the portion that is west of North Carr Road here is in District 2. So, all in all we first of all tried to stay as consistent with your prior maps as we could, and still reach the population goal. You can start all over fresh, but it causes confusion for everyone. So, we're very pleased with the results here, and I'm happy to answer any questions that you might have.

(Brief pause)

Mr. Brandgard: With no questions, Brian I want to thank you. It's been a pleasure working with you.

Mr. Bosma: Thank you sir.

Mr. Brandgard: As you did with the previous map, you did well with this one. Thank you very much.

Mr. Bosma: Appreciate it. I'll stick around until we act on it.

Mr. Brandgard: Okay. Again, since this is a public hearing, is there anybody in the audience that wishes to address us relative to the town council redistricting?

(Brief pause)

Mr. Brandgard: This is a public hearing for the Town Council redistricting. With nobody coming forward we will close that public hearing. We also have a public hearing for Additional Appropriation for Water Availability and General Fund.

(Brief pause)

Mr. Brandgard: The public hearing to allow the public to make comment, is there anybody in the audience that wishes to make comment relative to this additional appropriation?

(Brief pause)

Mr. Brandgard: Again, this is a public hearing for additional appropriation.

(Brief pause)

Mr. Brandgard: With nobody coming forward we will close that public hearing. Thank you.

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR

Mr. Brandgard: We'll now go to business from the floor.

(Brief pause)

Mr. Brandgard: You can come forward to the podium and there should be a sign in sheet there to sign in and get your name and address, and then let us know what that is also.

Mr. Murphy: Do we both write our names down here?

Mr. Brandgard: Yes. That helps the person that does the minutes get them correct.

Mr. Murphy: I have a couple of forms here that I can pass out if you guys want to see them.

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you

Mr. Murphy: First off, my name is Jason Murphy, I'm an auctioneer and we plan on doing an estate auction for Mr. Morrison at 207 Avon Avenue in Plainfield, Indiana. He passed away January 1st and this is his daughter Melissa and she's the head of the estate. We're asking that we close Krewson Street...

Ms. Laue: (inaudible)

Mr. Murphy: It's the only house on that road. There's the gas station on the other side. While we do the auction, for the safety of the people walking around, I would like to put those signs we have on each side, conduct the auction, and then open it right back up.

(Brief pause)

Mr. Brandgard: Consent?

Mr. McPhail: What's the date?

Ms. Laue: September 23rd (inaudible).

Mr. Angle: It will be shut down for two days?

Ms. Laue: Yes (inaudible) auction.

Mr. Angle: And the signs look relatively temporary, right. So, if an emergency vehicle needs to get through...

Mr. Murphy: I was going to say, that is easy to pick up and if there's like a fire or anything that's going on we can literally just pick it up and let people through.

Mr. Brandgard: Do we have consent?

(Consent is given)

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you. One question, what are you going to do with the house?

Ms. Laue: (inaudible)

Mr. Brandgard: Are you? Just curious, it's been there for a long time.

Ms. Laue: (inaudible)

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you. Is there any other business from the floor this evening?

(Brief pause)

Mr. Brandgard: If not, we'll move to staff reports.

STAFF REPORTS

Mr. Brandgard: Tim?

Mr. Belcher: As described in the work session preceding this council meeting, I'm requesting this evening the council declare an emergency repair for a section of West Fork and White Lick Creek, as described in the work session, for the southern portion only that we talked about. And that I be allowed to the immediately seek bids from Kokosing, Bowen, and John Hall Construction to do additional repairs that are needed to protect the town's infrastructure in that area.

Mr. Brandgard: Do I have a motion?

Mr. Bridget: I move that we approve the process as described.

Mr. McPhail: Second

Mr. Brandgard: We have a motion and a second to allow the declaration of emergency for the section as was described to us during our work session along West Fork and White Lick Creek to correct a sewer problem, or to keep a sewer problem from happening actually. So, with that, if there's no further discussion all those in favor signify by aye.

(All ayes)

Mr. Brandgard: Opposed? Motion carried, thank you.

Mr. Belcher: Thank you very much.

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you. Dennis, have you got anything else? Brent, anything from the Fire Territory? Jared, anything from the Police Department – Kyle?

Mr. Prewitt: He is here but I'm better looking!

Mr. Brandgard: Yeah, excuse me, I was just...

Mr. Prewitt: Oh, you're perfectly fine. I wanted to give you a quick update about the Quaker Day parade preparations. Deputy Chief Smock prepared our incident accident plan for that event. It's been communicated with all of our officers, and I wanted to share bits and pieces with you. We will be assembling at the police department early, as is typical of our procedure there. The road closures will be in place by 9:50 a.m., in advance of the parade. We will have officers on bicycles and our drone up patrolling the route by about 9:30 a.m. to make sure there are no safety risks in the area. We will be remaining with the restrictions of parking on the northern sections of the Al and Jan Barker Sports Complex just to make sure that those floats can come into the park. Those will be in place the night before to make sure that nobody comes in and parks. I know that's an incredibly convenient place to park and walk up to Main Street, but it's also the influx of everybody finishing up the parade. And then we will be maintaining the closure of North Vine Street for the arts fair that is going to be occurring there after the parade. I was asked to provide a quick update as well on our FLOCK cameras. We've had them now for I think maybe three years. We have 15 cameras, and they have an average of 5.6 hits per day, and those hits are vehicles that are of interest for a variety for reasons, and I'll describe those. Since October of 2021 we've had 234 sex offender hits, 248 stolen plate hits, 456 stolen vehicles, 304 warrants, and there are others, but also 10 hits for gang or terror watchlists persons on those cameras. Now we scan about an average of 76,600 plates a day...

Mr. Kirchoff: How many?

Mr. Prewitt: 76,600, and that's due in part to vehicles travelling and hitting multiple cameras. So, we're not getting that much vehicular traffic through the town, but they are tripping multiple cameras. Agencies including the Town of Plainfield and other departments that we share access with have queried those results 373,000, almost 374,000 times, searching for persons of interest in multiple different types of crimes and things of that nature. Also in this process, we've recovered \$114,000 in property that has been reported stolen that we were able to catch up to. These cameras are used on a daily basis multiple times by officers who are investigating from shoplifting to the unfortunate events of Saturday night. So, they're a really good investigative tool. We're working with other places to try to get them, private entities, to want to purchase those and give us access to them. So, we've been working with the mall to try to get them to get some cameras at their entries and exits. And we're also kind of in the conversation with different distribution centers here in town as well. Any questions about either of those?

Mr. Brandgard: That's a good update. I never thought we'd have that much activity.

Mr. Kirchoff: I was the one that asked for this because I read your report and I was just blown away by the numbers.

Me Prewitt: Yeah

Mr. Kirchoff: I mean, it's unbelievable.

Mr. Prewitt: Yeah, they're an indispensable tool at this point. Now that we've had them for a while – it's kind of one of those, we can verify that someone has left the area and we no longer have to remain in perimeters and use the manpower in that sense. You know, a lot of things can be identified in that pattern.

Mr. Angle: Kyle, I remember when we first came up on this a couple of years ago and not a lot of towns around us were participating. Have you seen more...?

Mr. Prewitt: A little more. Yeah, as far as Hendricks County's concerned, Avon has some cameras, Hendricks County Sheriff's Department has some cameras, Brownsburg and Danville, and we share with all of them.

Mr. Angle: Okay

Mr. Prewitt: Indianapolis Metropolitan Police Department just announced that they were going to add something like 150 other cameras to their system that is already pretty substantial. We've found it's a much cheaper way to get into this technology than some other companies, but it's been very durable. We haven't really dealt with any outages or anything else.

Mr. Angle: That's great.

Mr. Brandgard: Great.

Mr. Angle: I wish they'd find a better way to locate them though. I've seen them around town; I don't think they look that great honestly.

Mr. Prewitt: They don't, and I think as technology evolves in that way, they'll probably get smaller. But yeah, for what they are doing for us...

Mr. Angle: It's worth it. Yeah, thanks for the update.

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you. Kevin, anything from Planning?

Mr. Whaley: Good evening. I promise that I feel better than I sound. You may recall that a couple of meetings ago the Town Council had Ordinance No. 36 on its agenda for consideration, and it was remanded back to the Plan Commission for further study and review. The Plan Commission met on Thursday and discussed modifications to that ordinance. They had a lot of good dialogue, debate, and discussion but the Plan Commission did not take any action on those changes. So, we are still in the process of making those modifications to bring back to you. So, we request that you table the Third Reading of Ordinance No. 36 this evening.

Mr. Brandgard: Okay, thank you.

Me Whaley: Thank you

Mr. Brandgard: We'll handle that in the Resolution/Ordinance portion.

Mr. Klinger: Yeah, it will need to be tabled until October because that will be the next opportunity after – the first opportunity for Plan Commission to review it prior to coming back to Council.

Mr. Brandgard: Doug, anything from the Communications Center? Brent, Parks and Rec? Stephanie, anything?

Ms. Singh: I'm just coming forward on behalf of the Oasis Diner and Jack's Donuts to ask for permission for them to use the Bicentennial Plaza for this coming Saturday Quaker Day Parade. They will be having tenderloin eating contests and donut eating contests again.

Mr. Brandgard: Consent?

(Consent is given)

Mr. Kirchoff: I understand we're going to have some town employees who are going to participate?

Ms. Singh: So, we typically do. We have a few.

Mr. Klinger: We have a couple contenders here.

Ms. Singh: Al, Brent, Jared, maybe myself. I'll do donut eating contest this year. I'm not pregnant, so tenderloin eating contest is out of the question.

Mr. Brandgard: Yeah

Ms. Singh: I'll let them know that it's been approved. Thank you.

Mr. Brandgard: Great, thank you. Steve, anything from financial? Scott, anything from Transportation?

Mr. Singleton: Nothing additional, Sir.

Mr. Brandgard: Okay. Jared?

Mr. McKee: You know our public safety departments have been busy for the past couple of weeks which is unfortunate. But what I wanted to talk about was the events that occurred on September 1st which is when the little four-year-old girl went missing. I just wanted to say thank you first off to all of our departments. We had DPW, Parks, police, fire, dispatch; everybody came together and helped in those search efforts. More importantly, what happened was on September 2nd when we made a call to the public for them to come out and help us for that search, we have over 300 people show up that day. Many were people from the community that just wanted to come out and help. We had people that left construction sites that didn't live in Plainfield, but they saw the call and just wanted to come and help. We had people from all over central Indiana come out. So, I just wanted to publicly say thank you to all of them that came and helped that day. Although the results that day were not what we wanted, we really appreciate all the efforts that were put towards that day. Thank you.

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you for bringing that forward. This is a community of values and a caring community and that unfortunate occurrence brought that out pretty strong. Thanks for bringing that up. Al, you've moved up in the world. Do you have anything? Mel?

Mr. Daniel: One item, Mr. President. We've been working with the Groninger estate regarding that property on the corner of Vestal and 300 South, and just today we finished a proposed purchase order to present to the estate on that. I sent that out today because we just finished the final version of that today. So, if the council is willing, I'd like to have that approved so that we can get it to the estate as a purchase agreement and see if the estate will approve that and go forward and buy that property.

Mr. Brandgard: Do we have a motion?

Mr. Kirchoff: I would so move.

Mr. McPhail: Second

Mr. Brandgard: We have a motion and a second to approve the purchase agreement...

Mr. Daniel: That's prepared for your signature Mr. Brandgard.

Mr. Brandgard: Okay, that has been prepared for my signature, to purchase the property and the estate as mentioned. If there's no further discussion, all those in favor signify by aye.

(All ayes)

Mr. Brandgard: Opposed? Motion carried, thank you.

Mr. Daniel: Thank you. That's all I had.

Mr. Brandgard: Mark, welcome back.

Mr. Todisco: It's good to be back Mr. President. I would like to mention – this past month I know the economy's been tough on everybody and rates are going up in the mortgages and everywhere else across the line, but we also are gaining interest. Our rates are better at the bank and our CD rates are higher. We've exceeded \$3 million this month in our investment program. So, we hit that plateau and with the rates the way they're coming in right now, we'll probably see more growth there that we can utilize for the nature park and so forth.

Mr. Brandgard: That is good news in a bad news scenario.

Mr. Todisco: Yeah, exactly.

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you. Brad, have you got anything you'd like to impart, from the Chamber?

Mr. DuBois: Well, Chief Prewitt already took it all away, but I'll try to do a little bit. So yeah, this weekend is the Quaker Day Parade and I just want to say thank you. We couldn't do this without the police department, fire department, DPW, your approval to do this, the state of Indiana. I think – you know, we talk about a community of values, and this is one event that is huge in this town. There's something about coming down that hill and seeing all those people walking down that road -I just can't describe it, it's really cool. I just wanted to say thank you and hopefully at your next council meeting I'll come up and say thank you again for letting us do it, so. We're supposed to have really good weather this weekend.

Mr. Bridget: You know, Brad, I had a friend from out of town who was visiting during the Quaker Day Parade and he told me, well, as I see it half of the town is in the parade and the other half is watching.

Mr. DuBois: That's pretty much it, and I did notice tonight that – Jason's not here tonight but thanks for putting up the electronic boards. I know that something that INDOT really wanted to make sure we were letting the public know. Once again, it's a group effort and we really wanted to thank you. Thank you

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you. And we do have an honored guest in the room. Does Axel want to say anything?

Officer Sandifer: He's relaxing!

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you. We'll go to Town Manager's report.

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT

Mr. Klinger: Yeah, so I just have two items. First of all, the Quaker Day Parade has already been mentioned so I won't bring it up again but after that, on Sunday, begins the ICMA Conference which is an international conference for municipal managers. Myself, Al, Nate, as well as Chase and Bob, we will all be attending that conference in Columbus, Ohio. And so, we will be out of the office from Sunday through Wednesday of next week. So, Mr. Belcher will be there and

managing things in our absence, so I wanted you to be aware of that. And then the second item I have is a certification.

In my capacity as Secretary of the Town of Plainfield Plan Commission, I hereby certify that the Plan Commission held a public hearing on Thursday, September 8, 2022, on petition PUD-22-054 as filed by 327 Properties LLC to amend the Vandalia Planned Unit Development District to allow for a drive-through restaurant. Upon concluding the public hearing, the Plan Commission voted 6 in favor 0 in opposition to forward a favorable recommendation to the Town of Plainfield Town Council to amend the Planned Unit Development for the property that is described within Ordinance No. 40-2022. Which appears later on in your agenda.

Mr. Brandgard: Thank you.

Mr. Klinger: I would appreciate your acceptance of that certification.

Mr. Brandgard: Do we have a motion to accept the certification?

Mr. Angle: So moved.

Mr. Bridget: Second

Mr. Brandgard: We have a motion and a second to accept the certification for PUD-22-054 filed by 327 Properties LLC to amend the Vandalia District PUD to allow a drive-through restaurant. If there's no further discussion, all those in favor signify by aye.

(All ayes)

Mr. Brandgard: Opposed? Motion carried, thank you.

Mr. Klinger: Thank you. That's all I have.

OLD BUSINESS

Mr. Brandgard: With that we'll go to – Kent, any old business?

Mr. McPhail: Mr. President, I do have a couple of items. I was pleased to see in the IT report, the community service report that apparently, they're having a problem with the software for the utility billing. I had a problem with my water bill, it wasn't dated properly. I got a complaint from a resident that they got a shut off notice and they paid their bill. So, I don't know what's going on, but at least I was told that my problem was a software problem. It looks like they're working on it, so if you get any phone calls, I'd like you to be aware of that.

Mr. Klinger: Yeah, I think we had a particular issue with folks who are using Huntington National Bank. There was a particular issue with folks who paid through Huntington, so we've been resolving those conflicts as well. Anything else you want to share AI?

Mr. Geans: (microphone not on) (inaudible)

Mr. McPhail: Well, I saw both of the reports, so I was pleased to see that. The second item I have, I did get a resident complaint about air traffic. Apparently, FedEx is running late afternoon flights and they're turning over Plainfield and apparently – and I don't know what our agreement was in the past whether there were restricted hours, but this resident thought they should stay on the flight pattern until they got past Plainfield before they turn north. Apparently, they're not doing that, and I don't know how to approach that.

Mr. Brandgard: I can tell you; a couple of things have happened. Instead of FedEx flying in and out once or twice a day, they've broken that up into four time periods where they come in, load, and fly out. The flight agreement is for night, I think it's after 7:00 p.m., they're supposed to fly out before they turn; before 7:00 p.m. they can do what they want. And as I'm told, once the plane leaves the ground, the pilot is in charge, and he can do what he wants. But for the most part, FedEx planes do follow the rules.

Mr. Klinger: Yeah, that's certainly something we can communicate with the Airport Authority, just to let them know there are concerns and remind them of those agreements that are in place. I have also noticed late afternoon flights and the FedEx planes come out much lower than your typical passenger planes.

Mr. McPhail: Those big heavily loaded planes, you know they're pretty low when they turn, and pretty loud.

Mr. Brandgard: I've explained that to one person three times but... anyways.

Mr. McPhail: If it gets any worse the public will make a lot of noise, I suppose. That's all I have for old business. Thank you.

Mr. Angle: None

Mr. Bridget: No

NEW BUSINESS

Mr. Brandgard: Any new business?

Mr. McPhail: I do have one item Mr. President. It appears that a Plainfield native has been elected to the Naismith's Basketball Hall of Fame, Del Harris. I was contacted late last week, and the person said we really needed the town to recognize that a native son has been inducted into the Hall of Fame. I didn't realize it was this past weekend. I was not aware of that, but Del Harris was a Plainfield High School graduate, in the Plainfield Hall of Fame, Indiana Basketball Hall of Fame.

Mr. Brandgard: His father cut hair for many, many years.

Mr. McPhail: Yes, he did. I'd like for us to figure out some way to honor him. I can talk to the Chamber and see if they can get a banner to put across 40. I'd hoped we could do that before he was inducted, but I did not know it.

Mr. Brandgard: Well, we could issue a proclamation.

Mr. Klinger: Yeah, I certainly think we could do a proclamation, or there are other options for Mr. Harris. Yeah, I had heard that he was in the class to be enshrined, but I didn't know that had already happened. Yeah, we'll follow up on that.

Mr. McPhail: Thank you, that's all I have.

Mr. Bridget: No

RESOLUTIONS

Mr. Brandgard: With that we'll go to – we have one resolution. Resolution No. 2022-53 – A Resolution Confirming Interest by the Town in the Purchase of Real Estate for Public Purposes (Eaton Property). I'll entertain a motion to approve said resolution.

ADJOURN

Mr. Brandgard: If not, I'd entertain a motion to sign the documents requiring signature and adjourn.

Mr. McPhail: So moved

Mr. Angle: Second

Mr. Brandgard: All those in favor signify by aye?

(All ayes)

Mr. Brandgard: Opposed? Adjourned, thank you.

DocuSigned by:
Bill Kirchoff
78C608CAFF9B48C...

Bill Kirchoff, Vice President

DocuSigned by:
Mark J. Todisco
5C89C0DDEB63426...

Mark J. Todisco, Clerk-Treasurer